1)
2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

7)

Lapeer County Board of Commissioners

255 Clay Street, Suite 301

Lapeer, Michigan 48446

Phone: (810) 667-0366

Fax: (810) 667-0369

OUR NEW WEBISTE: www.lapeercountymi.gov

POLICTES & PROCEDURES COMMITTEE
**CAFE RAY’S CONFERENCE LOWER LEVEL**
FRIDAY, FEBRUARY 9, 2024
10:00 A.M.

Committee Members: Gary Howell (Chair), Truman Mast, and William Hamilton

A-G-E-N-D-A

CALL TO ORDER BY CHAIRMAN GARY HOWELL
CONSIDERATION OF THE AGENDA

CONSIDERATION OF THE MINUTES FROM THE NOVEMBER 22, 2023
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES COMMITTEE

REVISED DRAFT ANIMAL CONTROL ORDINANCE AND FEE
SCHEDULE (referred from the 11/22/23 Policies and Procedures Committee
Meeting after legal review—Corporation Counsel will be present to review the
changes they recommended—see attachment)

RUSS ADAMS, LAPEER E.M.S. — DISCUSSION OF UPCOMING EMS MILLAGE
BALLOT LANGUAGE DUE TO COUNTY CLERK IN APRIL

REVISED B.O.C. RULES OF PROCEDURES — LANGUAGE CLARIFICATIONS
ON APPOINTMENT PROCESS AND OTHER MINOR CHANGES (see attachment)

OLD/REFERRED/OR ADDITIONAL ITEMS (if needed):
A)
B)

~Meets at the call of the Chair, As Needed~



POLICIES AND PROCEDURES COMMITTEE
NOVEMBER 22, 2023

CONFERENCE ROOM 302 — ADMINISTRATION OFFICE, COUNTY COMPLEX
255 CLAY STREET, LAPEER, MI 48446

Chairman Gary Howell called the meeting to order at approximately 1:00 p.m. in the Conference
Room 302 in the Administration Office.

Members Present: Commissioners Gary Howell, Truman Mast, and William Hamilton.

Others: Moses Sanzo, County Administrator/Controller; Doreen Clark, Office
Manager; Stephanie King, Animal Control Officer and Dave Eady (current
temporary contractual staff at Animal Control and former Chief ACO)

AGENDA

Motion by Hamilton, supported by Mast, to approve the Agenda as presented. Motion
carried unanimously.

MINUTES
The minutes from the October 19, 2023 Policies & Procedures Committee meeting were reviewed.

Motion by Mast, supported by Hamilton, to approve the minutes from the October 19,
2023 Policies and Procedures Committee meeting as presented. Motion carried
unanimously.

ANIMAL CONTROL ORDINANCE

Stephanie King and Dave Eady from Animal Control were present to further discuss the newly
simplified revised Animal Control Ordinance that they updated. Each change was reviewed and
discussed. Several questions and questions followed regarding “vicious” and “nuisance” animal
definitions and suggested changes were offered for clarification.

Chairman Howell asked Animal Control to make the final changes and once prepared, he will
schedule another Policies & Procedures Committee Meeting for another review by the Committee.

Dave Eady expressed his concern for the staff’s safety after the dog bite incident that occurred
yesterday at the Animal Control building due to a dog that reacted viciously because it was scared
and how updates to the building could eliminate this problem with an intake area. It was noted
that building changes should be addressed by the Properties Committee.



Policies and Procedures Committee November 22, 2023 Page 2

SOCIAL MEDIA POLICY UPDATE

Moses Sanzo gave an update on the implementation of the Social Media Policy after recently
meeting with the Chief Judge regarding the “court employees” as they are co-employers with the
County. Mr. Sanzo stated that some minor language clarifications will need to be made but he
would like to have this reviewed by the new legal counsel in January too before bringing it back
to the Policies and Procedures Committee. Brief discussion followed.

ADJOURN

Motion by Hamilton, supported by Mast, to adjourn the meeting. Motion carried
unanimously. 2:10 p.m.

Gary Howell, Chairman
Lapeer County Policies and Procedures Committee

Minutes prepared by: Doreen Clark, Office Manager



LAPEER COUNTY ANIMAL CONTROL ORDINANCE

ENROLLED ORDINANCE NO. 20243

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PURPOSE ARTICLE I PAGE 2
AMENDMENT ARTICLE Il PAGE 2
DEFINITIONS ARTICLE I} PAGE 2-6
ANIMAL CONTROL OFFICERS ARTICLE \Y PAGE 6
FACILITY SHELTER OPERATIONS ARTICLE Vv PAGE 7-8
ADOPTION ARTICLE \ PAGE 8-9
DOG LICENSING ARTICLE Vil PAGE 10-11
KENNEL LICENSES ARTICLE Vil PAGE 11-12
ANIMAL BITES ARTICLE IX PAGE 12
ORDINANCE VIOLATIONS ARTICLE X PAGE 13-18

NUHSANGEANIMALS————— ARTIGLE— XI——PAGE19

GOUND FEEDING FERAL-CAT-ORDINANGE ARTICLE Xl
WILD & EXOTIC ORDINANCE ARTICLE Xl PAGE 20
REPORTING FOUND ANIMALS  ARTICLE Xl PAGE 20-21
LIVESTOCK DAMAGE CLAIMS ARTICLE XM PAGE 21
ANIMAL CRUELTY ARTICLE XVi  PAGE 21
SEVERABILITY ARTICLE XV PAGE 21
CONSTRUCTION ARTICLE XVIl}  PAGE 21-+22
SAVINGS CLAUSE ARTICLE XVIIlL PAGE 22
EFFECTIVE DATE ARTICLE XVIlIXxPAGE 22

PAGE 19



LAPEER COUNTY ANIMAL CONTROL ORDINANCE

ARTICLE |
PURPOSE

The Board of Commissioners of the County of Lapeer recognizes that Act number 339 of the
Public Acts of 1919, as amended, being Sections 287.261-287.290 of the Michigan Compiled
Laws (hereinafter MCL), Act number 426 of the Public Acts of 1988, being MCL 287.321-287.323,
and Act number 368 of the Public Acts of 1978, being MCL 333.1101-333.25211, constitutes state
law for the regulation of dogs. The Board finds 1) that it is necessary to establish and implement
a program for the licensing and regulation of dogs and other animals and facilities that house
them, 2) that animals require legal protection, 3) that the property rights of owners and non-owners
of animals should be protected, and 4) that the health, safety, and welfare, of people in Lapeer
County would best be served by adoption of such an ordinance, which shall be cited as “The
Lapeer County Animal Control Ordinance.”

ARTICLE Il
AMENDMENT

The provisions of this Ordinance amend and supersede the provisions of the Animal Control
Ordinance that was adopted by the Lapeer County Board of Commissioners on August 14, 2008
(BOC Motion #267-08).

ARTICLE lll
DEFINITIONS

A) “Abandonment” to abandon an animal or cause an animal to be abandoned. in any place. <

without making provisions for the animal's adequate care. unless premises are vacated for the

protection of human life or the prevention of injury to a human. An animal that is lost by an

owner or keeper, while traveling. walking, hiking. or hunting is not abandoned under this section
when the owner or keeper, has made a reasonable effort to locate the animal. An animal shall also
be considered abandoned if left at animal control for at least 7 consecutive davs

A) "Animal Control" means the animal kennel facility used by Lapeer County to house stray
or unwanted animals.

B) "Animal” means any living creature, except humans and plants. “Animal” includes any
mammal, bird, reptile, snake, crustacean, or any other vertebrate or invertebrate.

C) “Animal at large” means any animal that:

Formatted:

Font: (Default) Times New Roman

, 12 pt

Formatted:

Left

Font: (Default) Times New Roman

, 12 pt

Formatted:

Font: (Default) Times New Roman

, 12 pt

Formatted:

Font: (Default) Times New Roman

, 12 pt

(
(i
[ Formatted:
(
(
(

Formatted:

Font: (Default) Times New Roman

— A A A

[ Formatted:

Font color: Auto




1) Is not physically restrained on private property (including motor vehicles) with permission
of the property owner, in a manner that physically prevents that animal from leaving that
property or reaching any public areas, or

2) When not in compliance with subsection 1, is not restrained by a leash, tether or other
physical control device not to exceed six (6) feet in length and under the physical control
of a person.

D) “Animal Control Officer " means any person employed by Lapeer County for the purpose
of enforcing this Ordinance or state statutes pertaining to control of dogs or other animals; this
person must have Animal Control certification as prescribed by Department of Agriculture, and
Michigan Association of Animal Control Officers.

F) “Adequate care” is the provision of sufficient food, water, shelter, sanitary conditions,
exercise, and veterinary medical attention in order to maintain an animal in a state of good
health.

G)

GH) “Kennel Officer” means any person employed by Lapeer County for the purpose of
cleaning, recognizing disease, and ensuring the welfare of animals impounded and held under
County control.

H) “Chief Animal Control Officer” means a person employed by Lapeer County, under the
direction of the County Controller/Administrator or any other agency designated by the Board of
Commissioners, who oversees the operation of the Animal Control Division and Officers.

)] H—"Commercial Kennel” means any facility except a duly licensed pet shop wherein <
or whereon three or more licensable animals are kept for breeding, sale, boarding or
training purpose for remuneration.

J) "Dangerous Animal”_means a dog or other animal that bites or attacks a person, or a dog
that bites or attacks and causes serious injury or death to another dog while the other dog
is on the property or under the control of its owner. However, a dangerous animal does
not include any of the following:

(i) An animal that bites or attacks a person who is knowingly trespassing on the property <
of the animal's owner.

(i) An animal that bites or attacks a person who provokes or torments the animal.

(iii) An animal that is responding in a manner that an ordinary and reasonable person
would conclude was designed to protect a person if that person is engaged in a lawful
activity or is the subject of an assault.

Numbering Style: I, II, Ill, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment:

Formatted: List Paragraph, Numbered + Level: 1 +
Left + Aligned at: 0.19" + Indent at: 0.69"

|

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.44", No bullets or
numbering

[Formatted: List Paragraph, Indent: Left: 0.44"




J) .'Day" means any day the Lapeer County governmental offices are scheduled to conduct [Formaued; Font color: Auto

business. This shall include Saturdays, but does not include Sundays or holidays designated by
the Board of Commissioners.

K) “Euthanasia” means putting an animal to death in a humane manner.

L) “Exotic Animal" means any animal that is not commonly domesticated, or that is not

natlve to the State of M|ch|gan and/or the United Stateser—that—w&speshve—ef—geegaaphe

m—a—saf&and—sesu;emaaﬁe;—u—Thls Deflmtlon does not |nc|ude such anlmals kept in bona flde

public zoos, licensed laboratories erviruses-where-the-sustody-is-underthe-care-of-an-attendant
atalHimeste-assure-thatsueh where such animals are securely confined.

0) “Foster Home " means facilities that are licensed by the Michigan Department of
Agriculture or the Animal Control in that county for the purpose of holding animals for medical,
judicial, pre-adoption under the direction of the above agency. Foster homes are not authorized
to hold stray animals.

P) “Harboring or Keeping” the act of any person allowing an animal to remain and be
lodged within his or her house, store, building, enclosure, or premises for three (3), or more,
consecutive days.

Q) “Livestock” means farm animals used for human food and fiber_or any animal requlated

by the Michigan Right to Farm Act (MCL 245.471, et seq). Livestock includes, but is not limited [Formatted: Font: Italic

to, horses, stallions, colts, geldings, mares, sheep, rams, lambs, bulls, bullocks, steers, heifers,
cows, calves, mules, jacks, jennets, burros, goats, kids, swine and fur bearing animals being
raised in captivity. Livestock does not include animals that are human companions, such as
dogs and cats.

R) “Leash or Lead" a-thing--cord, rope, chain__tether, or other physical control device -ef
siraitartetherwhich holds an animal in restraint and which is not more than six (6) feet in length.

S) “Owner



‘Owner” means a person having a right of property ownership in an animal. who keeps or
harbors the animal or has the animal in his or her care or custody, or who permits the animal to
remain on or about any premises occupied by the person. An owner does not mean a person
who harbors an animal in the course of conducting a boarding, arooming, or training business,
or a veterinary hospital. or a person who harbors an animal in violation of Act 309 of the Public
Acts of 1939, being sections 287.301 to 287.308 of the Michigan Compiled Laws.

T) “Muzzle” means a device that when fitted upon an animal prevents it from biting any
person or animal and that is made in a manner that will not cause injury to the animal or
interfere with its vision or respiration.

U) “Person” means any natural person association, partnership, firm or corporation.

Commented [BK1]: Removed because there is no
penalty in the Ordinance for failure to maintain a proper
enclosure or context for when this would be enforced.
We can add back to a different section but more
information is required.




W) “Nuisance Animal” means an animal running at large, on public or private property other
than that of its owner or keeper, whose behavior constitutes a nuisance. Nuisance behavior
shall include, but not limited to: biting or otherwise making physical contact with a person or
other animal in a harassing manner; urinating or defecation without the collection by the owner
or keeper, damaging inanimate personal property, that molests passers by or passing vehicles,
is repeatedly at large or not under restraint, barks, whines or howls in an excessive, continuous
untimely manner. An animal that consistently deprives other residents of their rights to peaceful
enjoyment of their property.

AA)  ™Wild Animal” an animal that is native or non-native to the State of Michigan, or that
irrespective or of geographic region, belonging to a nondomestic species and includes any such
nondomestic species of animal which is kept or has been born in captivity.

“Exotic” or Wild Animal” means an animal that is native or non-native to the United States.

BB) “Provoke” means to perform a willful act or omission that an ordinary and reasonable
person would conclude is likely to precipitate the bite or attack by an ordinary dog or animal.

CC) “Serious Injury” means permanent, serious disfigurement, serious impairment of health,
or serious impairment of a bodily function of a person including injuries that require medical
treatment.

DD) “Treasurer” means the Lapeer County Treasurer.

EE) “Torment” means an act or omission that causes unjustifiable pain, suffering, and
distress to an animal, as evidenced by its altered behavior, for a purpose such as sadistic
pleasure, coercion, or punishment that an ordinary and reasonable person would conclude is
likely to precipitate the bite or attack.

Commented [BK2]: Struck as we can likely regulate
this type of issue under the “dangerous animal”
standard of state law. To be discussed with the
subcommittee.

Commented [BK3]: This would be appropriate to put
elsewhere in the Ordinance with a penalty attached
(I've moved it to the violation section).




ARTICLE IV
ANIMAL CONTROL OFFICER DUTIES, AUTHORITY AND RESPONSIBILITIES

A) The Lapeer County Board of Commissioners may employ a Chief Animal Control Officer
who shall direct the Animal Control Division and Animal Control Officers as necessary and in
accordance with County budgetary and personnel policies.

B) Animal Control Officers shall be responsible for enforcing the provisions of this
Ordinance under the laws of the State of Michigan that govern the control and well-being of
animals. This includes, but is not limited to, the issuance of a ticket, citation or summons to any
person if probable cause exists to believe he or she is in violation of this Ordinance or
applicable State law, and filing a complaint with the 71A District Court regarding the same
pursuant to the Dog Law of 1919, Act 220 of 1919 encoded into MCL 287-289a or any other
laws that may take effect after adoption of this ordinance.

C) Animal Control Officers, when enforcing this Ordinance, shall bear identification
reflecting the authority under which they act, which identification shall be shown to any person
requesting it.

D) No person or persons shall knowingly interfere with an Animal Control Officer rightfully
engaged with animal control duties. [The violator of this section shall be guilty of a misdemeanor
and upon conviction shall be imprisoned for not more than ninety (90) days_and- fined in an
amount not to exceed $500.004—,Q999f90},—and/0r required to perform retmere-than-240-heurs
eﬁ[community] service_hours.

ARTICLE V
ANIMAL CONTROL OPERATION, IMPOUNDMENT, RELEASE AND DISPOSAL

A) A)>—The Chief Animal Control Officer shall operate and maintain an adequate facility
as the Lapeer County Animal Control to receive, care for and safely confine any
animal in the Officer’s custody under provisions of this Ordinance. The Animal
Control facility shall be accessible to the public during reasonable hours for the
conduct of necessary business concerning impounded animals.

Commented [DV4]: Penalty changed to be consistent

Commented [DV5]: Violation changed to be consistent

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.75", No bullets or




B)

An Animal Control Officer may impound and hold at the shelter any animal when it is

Q)

the subject of a violation of this Ordinance or state law, when it requires protective
custody and care because of a charge of mistreatment, abuse, or neglect by its
owner, when it is voluntarily donated by its owner for disposition, or when otherwise
ordered impounded by the court.

* @rmatted: Font: 11.5 pt, Font color: Text 2

An Animal Control Officer may, enter upon private premises except a building “

Formatted: Indent: Left: 0.5", No bullets or

designated for and used for residential purpose, for the purpose of inspecting

Formatted: Font: 11.5 pt, Font color: Text 2

Formatted: List Paragraph, Numbered + Level: 1 +
Numbering Style: A, B, C, ... + Start at: 1 + Alignment:
Left + Aligned at: 0.25" + Indent at: 0.75"

animal(s) and whether the owners of said animals have complied with the
appropriate provisions of this Ordinance and the Statutes of the State. The

same to determine the harboring, keeping or possessing of any doa(s) or other f

e A AN A

provisions of this subsection shall specifically include, but not be limited to,
investigation of or seizure for cruelty to animals.




A [Formatted: Font: 10 pt j
)

[Formatted: Indent: Left: 1.75", Page break before

B) An Animal Control Officer may impound and hold at the Animal Control facility any of the
following:

1. Unlicensed dogs;

2. Dogs that are running at large or that are not on a leash or lead while off the owner’s
property.

3. Stray, urwanted;- or abandoned_animals or animals for which the owner has been

charged with ;abuse.-erabused-animals;

A nim hich o ar-o odian-o

' .l '. . . .

&4. Any Animal that meets the definition of a dangerous animal, vicious-animal-wild
animal-or exotic animal.

D) An animal shall be considered impounded from the time an Animal Control Officer takes
physical custody of the animal.

E) Impoundment is subject to the following holding period and notice requirements:

1. An animal bearing identification of ownership or whose ownership is otherwise known
shall be held for a minimum of seven (7) days after its impoundment unless otherwise
allowed by Court order. An Animal Control Officer shall make reasonable effort to give
notice of the impoundment to the owner by phone within 24 hours of impoundment and
shall document the same. If unsuccessful, the officer shall mail written notice by certified
mail within 48 hours of impoundment advising the owner of the impoundment, the date
by which redemption must be made and fees payable prior to redemption release.

2. An animal whose ownership is not determined shall be held for a minimum of four (4)
days after its impoundment pursuant to MCL 287-388.

3. Animals held for periods prescribed under this section and not redeemed—byredeemed
by their owners shall be subject to disposition.

F) Disposition of impounded animals shall be made in the following manner:



1. Any impounded animal shall be released to its owner or the owner’s authorized
representative if redeemed within the period set forth in this section upon payment of
fees for impoundment and care including actual cost of veterinary care incurred while
held in the animal control facility and if the owner is in compliance with provisions of this
Ordinance and statutes of the State including licenses and vaccination requirements.

2. Any animal held for the prescribed period and not redeemed by its owner, and which is
neither a potentially dangerous animal nor in a dangerous condition of health, may be
released for adoption subject to provisions of Article VI.

3. Any animal held for the periods prescribed under this section without redemption or
adoption shall be disposed of as authorized by Federal, State, Local Laws, and County
Policy, except that livestock and poultry may be sold in accordance within the provision
of this Ordinance and statutes of this State.

4. Provisions of this section regarding holding periods do not apply to any animal that is
sick or injured to the extent that the holding period would cause the animal undue
suffering in the judgment of an Animal Control Officer, or to any animal voluntarily
delivered to the animal control facility shelter by the owner thereof requesting humane
destruction. Such animals may be disposed of by euthanasia at any time.

ARTICLE VI
ADOPTION

A) A dog or cat may be released for adoption by an Animal Control Officer under the
following terms and conditions:

1. An Animal Control Officer has determined that the dog or the cat does not have an
owner.

2. An Animal Control Officer has determined that the dog or the cat is not a dangerous
animal.

3. An Animal Control Officer has obtained a written agreement from the prospective owner,
which states that the prospective owner will have the dog or the cat spayed or neutered
within thirty (30) days of adoption or upon reaching the age of sexual maturity, whichever
occurs first.

4. An Animal Control Officer has collected a fifty dollar ($50.00) deposit from the
prospective owner, which shall be refundable to the prospective owner upon the

10



B)

provision of written proof that the dog or cat which was adopted has been spayed or
neutered by a licensed veterinarian.

If the prospective owner fails to comply with the terms of the written agreement and fails
to have the dog or cat spayed or neutered as described in this Ordinance, the
prospective owner shall forfeit the fifty dollar ($50.00) deposit. An Animal Control Officer
may further charge the prospective owner with a civil infraction as provided in Article X of
this Ordinance. An Animal Control Officer may further seek the return of the dog or the
cat to the Animal Control facility as provided by the Michigan Pet Shop and Animal
Shelter Act, MCL 287.338 et seq and rules promulgated there under.

An Animal Control Officer may decline to release an animal for adoption under any of the

following circumstances.

1.

A)

The prospective adoptive owner has been convicted of the crime of cruelty to animals
within the previous five (5) years.

The prospective adoptive owner has, in the opinion of an Animal Control Officer,
inadequate or inappropriate facilities for keeping the animal or providing proper care to

the animal.

Other circumstances exist that, in the opinion of an Animal Control Officer, would
endanger the welfare of the animal or health, safety or welfare of people.

The animal does not meet the evaluation set forth by an Animal Control Officer. This
determination may be appealed as set forth in the adoption policy.

The prospective owner indicates that he or she will not comply with the provisions of this
Ordinance.

ARTICLE Vil
DOG LICENSES, RABIES VACCINATION, AND LICENSE TAGS

Beginning at the age of four (4) months and continuing thereafter for the life of the

animal, all dogs that reside in Lapeer County must be licensed by Lapeer County Animal
Control in accordance with the provisions of this Ordinance. The fees for licensing a dog in
Lapeer County shall be established by the Lapeer County Board of Commissioners, as

11



published in the Lapeer County Fee Schedule. In order to obtain a dog license, the owner must
provide written proof (certification) that the dog has been vaccinated for rabies. The certification
must be signed by a licensed veterinarian, and shall be considered valid for the period of time
stated therein, not to exceed three (3) years from the date the rabies vaccination was
performed.

B) All dogs that have been licensed in Lapeer County shall display on or about their collar a
license tag as provided by Lapeer County Animal Control.

C) A dog license shall be considered valid for a period of one (1) year or three (3) years.
The anniversary date of the license shall coincide with the date upon which the dog first
received a rabies vaccination. An owner shall be required to renew a dog license on a yearly
basis, within thirty (30) days of the anniversary date. A failure to renew the license within thirty
(30) days of the anniversary date shall subject the owner to a license delinquency fee as
established by the Lapeer County Board of commissioners, and published in the Lapeer County
Fee Schedule.

D) A three (3) year dog license may be obtained at the owners request if the rabies
vaccination is valid for the entire 3 years. If the rabies vaccine expires within the three (3) year
period the owner would only be allowed to purchase a one year license. Cost of license(s)
would be as set forth in the fee schedule of Lapeer County. This fee is non-refundable.

E) License and License tags are assigned to individual dogs and are not transferable to
other animals. They shall remain with the dog upon transfer to another owner for the life of the
license, except that upon transfer to another owner within Lapeer County the last registered
owner shall notify the Animal Control Division so that it may note such transfer upon its records.
This Ordinance does not require the procurement of a new license, or the transfer of a license
already secured, where the possession of a dog is temporarily transferred for the purpose of
boarding, hunting game, breeding, trial or show.

F) Transient dogs in Lapeer County must be licensed in the county in which the owner
resides Residents who are new to Lapeer County and who possess a dog or dogs which have
been licensed outside of Lapeer County will be given ninety (90) days from the time they move
into the County to obtain a Lapeer County Animal License. The anniversary date for the license
of a dog that has moved to Lapeer County shall be the date upon which the original license was
issued, consistent with the date of the dog's rabies vaccine.

G) Any person requesting a license for a sexually altered animal must present a certificate
of sterilization signed by a licensed veterinarian that the animal has been surgically altered.

H) If a license tag is lost, it shall be replaced for a fee as set forth by the Lapeer County
Board of Commissioners, and published in the Lapeer County Fee Schedule. The owner shall
provide proof that the dog is licensed and shall sign a statement that the tag has been lost.



1) License fees shall be waived for any animal that is certified and actively working, such
as a graduate leader dog, police dog, or hearing impaired companion dog. Foster dogs will be
required to be licensed in Lapeer County.

J) If a person obtains a new dog, the dog must be licensed within thirty (30) days of its
acquisition. Failure to obtain a dog license within thirty (30) days shall subject the owner to
penalties as stated in Article X and a license delinquency fee as established by the Lapeer
County Board of Commissioners, and published in the Lapeer County Fee Schedule. Proof of
new ownership must be shown at the time of application, in receipt from signed by the previous
owner(s).

K) No dog shall be exempt from the rabies vaccine requirements for licensing unless a
licensed veterinarian certifies in writing that such a rabies vaccine would be detrimental to the
health of said dog. An Animal Control Officer shall approve the same in writing, shall issue a
certificate authorizing the owner of said dog to obtain the license without rabies vaccination, and
such dog shall be licensed by the Animal Control Division accordingly.

L) The provisions of this Ordinance do not prevent any Township, Village, City or other unit
of government in Lapeer County from Adopting an ordinance for the control and licensing of
cats within its jurisdiction.

ARTICLE VI
DOG KENNEL LICENSES

A) Any person who owns or keeps multiple dogs may, in lieu of obtaining individual licenses
as required under this Ordinance and under the statutes of the State, apply to the Animal
Control Division for a commercial kennel license. After approval from the local municipality.

B) A commercial kennel license shall entitle a person or persons to own, keep or operate a
commercial kennel for the boarding, breeding, or selling of dogs in accordance with the
applicable laws of the State of Michigan and local ordinances as follows.

1. Any person who owns, keeps or operates a kennel at any single location within the
boundaries of Lapeer County shall, within thirty (30) calendar days prior to the start of
such operation, obtain a kennel license from the Animal Control Division.

2. The application must be accompanied by the applicable fee for the same, but proof of
vaccination against rabies shall not be required when applying for a commercial kennel
license.

3. An Animal Control Officer shall issue such license upon proper application it the kennel

is in compliance with Section 10 and 11 of At 339 of the Public Acts of 1919, as
amended, being MCL 287.270, and 287.271, and the issuance of the license is not in

13



conflict with any applicable ordinance of the city, village, or township in with the kennel
will be located.

4. Commercial kennel licenses shall be renewed prior to June 1st of each year.

5. Failure to apply for a commercial kennel license within the prescribed time limit will result
in a delinquent fee being charged as established by the Lapeer County Board of
Commissioners, and published in the Lapeer County Fee Schedule.

C) An Animal Control Officer shall have the right to inspect any commercial kennel, upon
request, in the County of Lapeer in order to determine whether said kennel is in compliance with
the Ordinance and the statutes of the State. Kennel licenses may be suspended if, in an Animal
Control Officer's opinion, conditions exist that are unhealthy or inhumane to the animals kept
therein pending correction of such conditions, and may be revoked if such conditions are not
corrected within a designated reasonable time.

ARTICLE IX REPORTS OF ANIMAL BITES

A) The owner of an animal that has attacked, bitten, or scratched a person or another
animal shall report that attack to an Animal Control Officer

B) Every animal that has attacked, bitten, or scratched a person shall be impounded and
quarantined for a period of ten (10) days, or as directed by an Animal Control Officer. Such
quarantine shall be at the owner’s residence, the animal control facility, a veterinarian clinic, or
such other place as designated by an Animal Control Officer. The owner shall surrender the
animal to the Animal Control Officer upon request.

ARTICLE X
ORDINANCE VIOLATIONS, ENFORCEMENT, AND PENALTIES

A) Unless otherwise stated herein or prescribed under Michigan law, the penalty for violation of
any provision of this Ordinance shall be as follows:

14



1. |As-te-the-firstUnless otherwise stated in this Ordinance, first offense violations shall be a
civil infraction of $ _.ef Ssecond offense~the-violations shall be a civil infraction_in the

amount of $ —and-upen-a-inding-ofracpensibilitthe-vieltershal-be-finedasssat
forth-below- Additional fines shall be charged per animal. |

2. As-te-the-Tthird or subsequent offense-the violations may be a misdemeanor; and upon
conviction the violator shall be imprisoned for not more than ninety (908) days, fined in
an amount not to exceed $4-8080-500.00, and/or required to perform ret-mere-than-240
heurs-ef-community service_hours-

3.3———In addition, court costs may be levied against any person determined to be guilty «
of or responsible for a violation.

4. The classification of an offense as a civil infraction or misdemeanor under this Ordinance
shall not preclude the Lapeer County Animal Control Division and its officers, the Prosecuting
Attorney, the Attorney General, or any other law enforcement off